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Dear  
 
Thank you for your E-mail of 27 July requesting the following information:  
 

“Please provide the PR assessment conducted for the Wonder Woman project, on which the 
film-makers requested to film at RAF Halton and RAF Upper Heyford.ï¿½ Please provide any 
available documentation on the 'scoping' part of the process for Wonder Woman, which is 
mandated by the directive and therefore must have been done.ï¿½  

 
I also note while reviewing the previously-released documents on Wonder Woman that the 

film-makers signed a license agreement of some kind to allow them to film at RAF Halton and RAF 
Upper Heyford, but no copy of the Film Licence or Licenses were provided in this prior release.ï¿½ 
I therefore also ask that a copy of any such Film Licence(s) be provided to me. 

 
I also note from Part 2 of the JSP that 'where contract/licence action is required a Project 

Proforma (sometimes known as a Project Implementation Document (PID)) completed' but this PID 
was not provided to me in response to my prior request on Wonder Woman, and therefore I ask 
that a copy of this PID be provided.ï¿½ Since the document can apparently be updated as the 
project progresses, I ask that all iterations/versions of this PID be provided.ï¿½  

 
I also note from Part 2 of the JSP that there is a reference to the Defence Communications 

Planner - while I am not requesting a copy of this (yet) I do ask for clarification on what this is.ï¿½ 
”. 

The Directorate of Defence Communications (DDC) is responding to your request as the main 
communications area within the MOD.  Air Command have also provided information for the 
response as they dealt with your previous FOI requests on the Wonder Woman project in 2017. 
 
I am treating your correspondence as a request for information under the Freedom of Information 
Act 2000 (FOIA). I can confirm that the Ministry of Defence (MOD) does hold some information 
within the scope of your request.   
 
This request is a clarification of your previous FOI reference FOI2020/06499. 
 
I will answer each of your questions in turn.  
 
A search has been undertaken for any recorded information falling within scope of a PR 
assessment for Wonder Woman, but I can confirm that no information is held for this part of your 
request.   
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The Film Licence requested is attached.  Parts of it have been redacted as some of the information 
falls within the scope of the qualified exemptions provided for at Section 40, personal data and also 
Section 43 Commercial Interests and therefore has been withheld. 
 
Section 40 is an absolute exemption which does not require us to undertake a public interest test.   
 
Section 43 is a qualified exemptions and is subject to the public interest testing which means that 
the information requested can be withheld if the public interest in doing so outweighs the public 
interest in disclosure. 
 
Section 43 (2) has been applied to the information withheld because film companies may be 
discouraged from participating in a scheme if they felt it could result in the disclosure of information 
relating to their general business.  In addition the confidentiality of the payments for licenses 
serves to protect a legitimate economic interest. Whilst there is clear public interest in the 
transparency of releasing this information as it would allow the public to understand who our 
commercial partners are, the balance of the public interest lies in withholding the information.   
 
For these reasons we have set the level of prejudice against release of the exempted information 
at the higher level of  “would” rather than the lower level of “would be likely to”.  
 
Regarding your request for the Project Proforma or Project Implementation Document (PID) this 
has already been provided to you in the response you received reference FOI 2017/07745.  The 
emails and documents attached to the letter are considered to be all the records pertaining to the 
project.  There is no set format or specific document called a Project Proforma or a PID.  I have 
also attached the previous FOI for reference.  
 
Information regarding the Defence Communications Planner has been provided to you in the 
response to your FOI request reference FOI2020/08708. 
 
If you are not satisfied with this response or you wish to complain about any aspect of the handling 
of your request, then you should contact us in the first instance at the address above. If informal 
resolution is not possible and you are still dissatisfied then you may apply for an independent 
internal review by contacting the Information Rights Compliance team, Ground Floor, MOD Main 
Building, Whitehall, SW1A 2HB (e-mail CIO-FOI-IR@mod.uk). Please note that any request for an 
internal review must be made within 40 working days of the date on which the attempt to reach 
informal resolution has come to an end.  
 
If you remain dissatisfied following an internal review, you may take your complaint to the 
Information Commissioner under the provisions of Section 50 of the Freedom of Information Act. 
Please note that the Information Commissioner will not normally investigate your case until the 
MOD internal review process has been completed. Further details of the role and powers of the 
Information Commissioner can be found on the Commissioner's website, http://www.ico.org.uk. 
 
 
Yours sincerely, 
 
 
 
DDC Secretariat Parliamentary.  
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